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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

130 Gillespie Street
Fayetteville North Carolina 28301
(910) 678-7602

TENTATIVE AGENDA
SEPTEMBER 16, 2010
7:00 PM
A meeting of the Cumberland County Board of Adjustment is to be held on Thursday, September 16,
2010, at 7:00 p.m. in Hearing Room #3 of the Historic Courthouse at 130 Gillespie Street, Fayetteville,
North Carolina. The agenda is as follows:
1. ROLL CALL
2. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA
3. APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 19, 2010 MINUTES
4. ABSTENTIONS BY BOARD MEMBERS
5. PUBLIC HEARING DEFERRALS
6. BOARD MEMBER DISCLOSURES
7. POLICY STATEMENT REGARDING APPEAL PROCESS
8. PUBLIC HEARING(S):
P10-13-C: CONSIDERATION OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A
COMMUNITY CENTER IN AN RR RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT ON .95+/-
ACRES, LOCATED AT 7108 ORA COURT, SUBMITTED BY LEON REVELS JR. ON
BEHALF OF LUMBEE TRIBE OF NORTH CAROLINA (OWNER).
9. DISCUSSION
10. UPDATE(S)

11. ADJOURNMENT
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Cumberland County Board of Adjustment
130 Gillespie Street
Fayetteville, NC 28301
(910) 678-7603

MINUTES
AUGUST 19,2010
7:00 P.M.
Members Present Absent Members Staff/Others Present
George Quigley, Chair John Swanson (excused) Thomas Lloyd
Joseph Dykes Patricia Speicher
Melree Hubbard Tart Pier Varner
Horace Humphrey Melodie Robinson
Carrie Tyson-Autry Harvey Raynor (Deputy
County Attorney)
Chair Quigley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in Public Hearing Room # 3 of the Historic
Courthouse.
1. ROLL CALL

Mrs. Varner called the roll and stated a quorum was present.
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA

There were none.

APPROVAL OF THE JULY 15,2010 MINUTES

A motion was made by Mr. Humphrey and seconded by Mrs. Tart to approve the minutes as
submitted. The motion passed unanimously.

ABSTENTIONS BY BOARD MEMBERS
There were no abstentions by Board Members.
PUBLIC HEARING DEFERRALS

There were no deferrals.

BOARD MEMBER DISCLOSURE

There were none.



7. POLICY STATEMENTS REGARDING APPEAL PROCESS
Mrs. Varner read the Board’s policy regarding the appeal process to the audience.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you very much. We will have public hearing tonight and I want to
remind you that this is a Quasi-Judicial hearing which means that if you testify before this
Board, it will be sworn testimony. Should you have to be recalled to testify, you will remain
under oath when you’re giving whatever testimony or evidence you want to give. Would you
publish the first case please?

8. PUBLIC HEARING(S)
Opened Public Hearing

e P10-11-C: CONSIDERATION OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE
EXPANSION OF A BORROW. SOURCE OPERATION IN A M(P) PLANNED
INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT ON A 34.68 +/- ACRE PORTION OF A 79.5 +/- ACRE
TRACT, LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF DOC BENNETT ROAD (SR 2212),
NORTH OF 1-95; SUBMITTED BY VIRGINIA CORBETT CARROLL (OWNER)
AND JERALD F. MCDONALD.

MRS. VARNER: Mr. Chairman, I would like to make a remark that on June 19, 2008. a
Special Use Permit was being approved on the subject property for Phase I. The following
presentation is a proposed request for a Special Use Permit for Phase II.

Mrs. Varner presented the zoning, land use and photos of the site to the Board.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Does any member of the Board have questions for the staff?

MR. HUMPHREY: You say the first operation was approved in 2008?

MRS. VARNER: June 19, 2008.

MR. HUMPHREY: Thank you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: I do have a sheet indicating no one is here to speak in favor of this request
for Special Use Permit. I do have one person signed to speak in opposition to the Special Use
Permit. Mr. Norton, are you present? Would you please come forward?

Chair Quigley swore in Daniel Norton.

MR. NORTON: My name is Daniel Norton, I live at 3678 Doc Bennett Rd, right beside the
location there.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Can you point out on the map exactly where your property is?

Mr. Norton indicated on the map using the laser pointer where his property is located.
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MR. NORTON: I guess my question is they cleared off all of this land at one time and dug it
down and since they have dug this here, this has grown back up so roughly you’ve got little
trees out here about 6-10 ft. tall. So when they go back to clear all this off, there’s going to be a
big pile of brush. I have a question, where are they going to put that? I ask that they don’t put it
along the road near this area here because I have trees here and if it was to catch on fire it would
be a bad problem. When they cleared this off over here, they got a pile here that is almost 35-40
feet tall and they’re clearing out three times the amount now than before. I’'m asking that when
they clear this that they do not pile the brush there. Depending on how much they clear out, will
they maintain a fire break in here also? My property comes into here and cuts a small section
out, but this property back here belongs to my neighbor and I imagine they would like to have
the same thing done along there too. Also, since they have put this in here, the noise level of
four wheelers and gun fire on the weekends has been introduced into the area. However, the
Sheriff’s Department does a pretty good job of going out there when you call them, but there’s
never anybody out there when they get there. 1 don’t know if it’s in their pit here because they
have a tremendous big hole there, but Autry Grady has one over here and there is a big pit over
there and there’s people in there too. That’s what I'm asking, if they would not pile the brush
up along here and to maintain a fire break?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you. Let me ask while you’re still there a question for staff? Could
we put a condition in the Special Use Permit that they would have to clear the brush from the
site?

MS. SPEICHER: If we consider that condition, the best avenue to take would be to include that
in your motion but also include that if the applicant disagrees with that, we bring the case back.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you.

MR. NORTON: I have no problem with them leaving the debris, taking it up...if they could
move it over here somewhere. not necessarily removing it from the sight, but just not putting it
over here. (He is pointing to the locations on the presentation). I thank you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Anyone else to introduce information relevant to the Special Use Permit.
We’re just going to recess the hearing for a moment so I can talk to the Board.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: We’re back in session.

MR. HUMPHREY: Mr. Chairman, I offer a motion that we approve the Special Use Permit on
Case P10-11-C with the conditions as stated and based on these items:

1. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located according
to the plan submitted and recommended;

There is no material danger to the public health or safety and that this is already in
operation, this is just an expansion.

2. The use meets all required conditions and specifications:.

I think with the conditions set aside it will meet all the required conditions and
specifications for the Special Use Permit.

County Board of Adjustment Minutes: 08/19/10 Page 3 of 42



3. The use will maintain or enhance the value of adjoining or abutting properties, or that the use
is a public necessity;

It will be maintaining the same operation that is already in operation, it is just an
expansion, so it will be nothing new.

4. The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan as submitted and
recommended, will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and is in general
conformity with Cumberland County’s most recent Land Use Plan.

It will not change the location, so I think all the conditions as listed in the fact sheet will be
met and, I think we can offer a motion to approve it with any special condition that you
might want to add.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Could you add a condition that we require them to position the vegetative
debris in such a way as to not impede the neighbors’ property?

MR. HUMPHREY: I will also move that we add those exact wordings.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Do I have a second?

MR. DYKES: Seconded the motion.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: It has been properly moved and seconded that we grant the Special Use
Permit with the additional condition that they position the debris so that it doesn’t impede the
neighbors’ property lines. Is there any other discussion?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: All in favor, signify by saying aye. Any opposed?

Quigley: Yes

Tart: Yes
Dykes: Yes
Humphrey: Yes
Autry: Yes

CHAIR QUIGLEY: The Special Use Permit is granted.

The motion was approved unanimously.

e P10-12-C: CONSIDERATION OF AN APPEAL SUBMITTED UNDER ARTICLE
XVI SECTION 1604, ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW WITH THE BASIS OF THE
APPEAL CONCERNING ARTICLE II, SECTION 303, ARTICLE IV SECTION 403
(“SCHOOL, BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL FOR NURSES OR OTHER
MEDICALLY ORIENTED PROFESSIONS, TRADE, VOCATIONAL & FINE
ARTS;” “SCHOOLS, PUBLIC, PRIVATE, ELEMENTARY OR SECONDARY™),
ARTICLE IX SECTION 916 AND ARTICLE XVI AS APPLIED TO THE
TIGERSWAN TRAINING COLLABORATION CENTER; SUBMITTED BY JULIA
KATHERINE FAIRCLOTH, RAEFORD B. LOCKAMY II, SAMUEL D. AND DORIS
M. FORT.
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Ms. Speicher presented the zoning, land use and photos of the site to the Board.

MS. SPEICHER: On the screen you see the subject property and in the hatch pattern in the
center. This is the center of the appeal or the basis of the appeal. Surrounding land uses. We
have Quarterside Farm which I understand is a produce stand shown as Item #1. Number 2 is
OK Farm, which my understanding is a hog farm. Then we have residential in the area shown
by yellow along with two doublewide manufactured homes. This is the aerial view of the
subject property outlined in blue. Hydric soils are on the site. This is the site plan that was
approved by this Staff on June 10, 2010, subject to the conditions of approval. This is an
enlargement of the site plan. You’ll see seven classroom buildings in the lower portion of your
screen. There are five ranges here and three pistol ranges here. There are several other
buildings, a Pro shop, incidental structures on the same site. Photos of the site, this is actually at
the entrance where the Class C private street to serve TigerSwan site. This is the actual subject
property. You’ll see on this aerial photo we have the three petitioners Mr. & Mrs. Fort, Ms.
Faircloth, Mr. Mulier and Mr. Lockamy’s property shown on the slide.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Talk to that again Ms. Speicher.

MS. SPEICHER: The TigerSwan site is outlined in blue or teal color. Then you have Mr. &
Mrs. Forts® property, the Faircloth/Mulier property and the Lockamy property. Those are the
three petitioners that signed the application for this appeal along with the parcel numbers that
they themselves included in the application. You have a complete copy of the entire application
in your packets. This is where the actual fire ranges are (the red X). You will notice on the
screen that staff, for the Board’s orientation, we have put the radius as a different mile, in half
mile increments, measurements. ['m available for any questions.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Does any Board member have questions for staff?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: What we have here Board is certainly not the usual sort of case. We’'re
weighing this appeal of a decision that was made by our County Planning Director and what
we’re going to be asked to do is to essentially affirm or deny the appeal, so the testimony we get
has to be relevant to the parties concerned. So, I'm going to ask some questions of staff just to
make sure we’ve got everything we want.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Ms. Speicher, was this appeal filed in a timely manner?

MS. SPEICHER: Yes Chair, I think it would be more appropriate, even though I'm secretary to
the Board, if [ were sworn in along with Mr. Lloyd.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you.

Chair Quigley swore in Patricia Speicher and Thomas Lloyd.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Was this appeal filed in a timely manner?

MS. SPEICHER: Yes Chair, it’s staff’s understanding that it has been.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you very much. Did the appellants have standing to bring this
appeal forward?
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MR. LLOYD: We have not been able to determine that at this time and there was nothing in the
application to show an aggrieved party.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: I understand. I think what we have to do is establish whether or not we
have standing. I understand there may be counsel representing some of the aggrieved, is that
correct? Will one of the counsels come forward to be sworn in.

Chair Quigley swore in Robin Currin.

MRS. CURRIN: My name is Robin Currin, 127 W. Hargett Street, Raleigh, NC.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you very much. Which clients are you representing, Ms. Currin?

MRS. CURRIN: I represent Sam and Doris Fort. All three appellants are here and they are
prepared to testify under oath as to the adverse affects this proposed use will have on their
property that will establish standing.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you very much. I remind you that should you be called forward
again, that you remain under oath.

MRS. CURRIN: Yes sir. Do you want to go ahead and swear in the other counsel?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Is he going to offer evidence also?

MRS. CURRIN: He may.

Chair Quigley swore in George B. Currin.

MR. CURRIN: George Currin, same address. 127 W. Hargett Street, Raleigh, NC.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Are you representing the same clients?

MR. CURRIN: We have a firm, Currin & Currin. The firm is representing the same clients.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you. What I'm going to do now is call the aggrieved forward to
establish if they have standing in this case. Is Ms. Faircloth here? Please come forward.

Mrs. Currin approaches the podium.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Are you representing her?

MRS. CURRIN: No, I'm not, but can I say one thing very quickly?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Yes.

MRS. CURRIN: With respect to all of the appellants, we have a number of exhibits to submit,
and three of those exhibits are sworn affidavits of each of them that relate to their standing, so it
may be helpful at this time if we could go ahead and give you those so you actually have those
statements with you at the time you’re making that determination.
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CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you, do so.

Mrs. Currin submits the exhibits to Ms. Speicher. [Exhibit 1]

MRS. CURRIN: Now, I have an original here which I'd like to submit to the clerk for purposes
of filing and then we have a copy for each one of the board members. I know you’re going to
hear from each of them but just for points of reference at Tab 5 is the affidavit of each of the
appellants that relates specifically to this effect. We also have a copy of this for the TigerSwan
people if they would like to have a copy of these exhibits.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay, with your permission, I don’t think we have time to peruse that
before we start receiving some testimony. Is that alright with you?

MRS. CURRIN: Yes sir, I just thought you might want to have it in front of you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Ms. Faircloth, would you please come forward? Would you please state
your name, give us your address and be so kind as to point your property out on the map.

Chair Quigley swears in Ms. Faircloth.

MRS. FAIRCLOTH: I'm Julia Katherine Faircloth, I live at 6504 NC Hwy 210 S in Stedman.
On the map it’s shown in red.

MS. SPEICHER: [l point to the subject property. It’s labeled Faircloth with the parcel
number.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Got it, does everyone see where that parcel is? Okay, thank you very
much. Ms. Faircloth, what did you have to introduce?

MRS. FAIRCLOTH: I have several things and there are several resources that I have cited in
the copies that you have, I don’t want to read all of those, but I did prepare copies should you
want to look at those at some point.

Ms. Faircloth handed copies of her information to Ms. Speicher to hand out to the Board
members. [Exhibit 2]

MS. SPEICHER: For the record, can we have these submitted by Ms. Faircloth.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Alright. Introduce that as evidence from Ms. Faircloth. Once again, thank
you very much and once again let me say if we don’t go through that now.....

MS. SPEICHER: Excuse me Chair, for the record, can we have it clarified that that was offered
as evidence for Ms. Faircloth?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: I want to clarify for the record that we have received some evidence for
Ms. Faircloth.

MRS. FAIRCLOTH: Would you like me to continue?

County Board of Adjustment Minutes: 08/19/10 Page 7 of 42



CHAIR QUIGLEY: Yes.

MRS. FAIRCLOTH: My property is only 375 feet from the property line of the proposed
TigerSwan Training Collaboration Center site. My husband and I have three children and in
2004 we built our current home to be near my father’s home to enjoy a quiet rural life. I grew
up in the Seaford Community. I was shocked and confused by the letter I received in November
2009 inviting me to a community meeting regarding new business that was coming to our area.
The invitation came in an envelope with no return address and not on company letterhead. They
wanted to be good neighbors. Research indicates that TigerSwan officials had ties to
Blackwater. As the weeks and months passed between the Thanksgiving arrival of this
community meeting invitation and the Memorial Day submission of TigerSwan’s site plan
application to the County, the residents had the opportunity to see TigerSwan’s advertisements
and billboards around the county that read, “for those who have hunted armed men, training will
never be the same - the most realistic combat training available.” We’re not an anti-military
family; my father is a WWII veteran participating in both the European and Pacific theaters and
retired from the Department of Defense after more than 30 years of service. Other family
members who have served in the military; military training is a necessity, we respect and
appreciate the efforts of the military. When we hear training exercises at Ft. Bragg, and we do
hear them where we live, we recognize it and we have no issues with that. TigerSwan is not the
U.S. military. They are a private for profit company. We do not want their realistic combat
exercises in our backyard. Military training belongs on military bases, military bases were
developed to isolate and contain this training from and for the safety of the general public. My
family and I have significant objections to the proposed TigerSwan facility. 1 brought this
appeal because under no reasonable interpretation of the County Zoning Ordinance or any other
law can this facility be reasonably classified as a school, public, private, elementary, or
secondary. The TigerSwan facility is simply not a permitted use in the A-1 district and is
completely inconsistent with the uses and purposes of that district and the surrounding area. If
this grave error in classification is not corrected, the damages suffered by me and my family
including the decrease in our property value will be substantial and irreparable. There’s no
doubt in my mind that our property values will be greatly diminished by the presence of the

operation that TigerSwan is currently planning and that it poses a significant threat of injury and
specific and direct loss to us. Specifically those damages which are distinct from the
community at large are as follows: Safety — we have a concern about stray gun fire. We're

concerned it will be unsafe to walk around our property or spend time outdoors. We land
owners and farmers may no longer be able to lease our land for hunting wildlife due to the risk
of stray gun fire. A number of residents rely on income from hunting agreements. The
conditional approval from the county says that TigerSwan is approved for all small arms. Small
arms can be defined as “weapons manufactured to military specifications and designed for use
by one person.” Some of the distances that some small weapons ammunition can travel include:
270 bullets can travel 2 % - 3 %2 miles, 308 bullets can travel 2 % - 3 2 miles and 300 windmags
can travel up to 5 miles. According to the County Planning Department, my home is 1.9 miles
from the range site, within the distance that ammunition can travel. Our property line is only
375 feet away from theirs. TigerSwan plans to fire 15 million rounds of ammunition per year.
That comes from their Blackriver Design Report which Stewart Acoustical Consultants
submitted to the County. We have been told that there is a one in a million chance of stray gun
fire by James Reese, in response to questions about potential safety concerns. This can be
interpreted that there will be some stray gun fire if firing several millions rounds per year.
Noises and others concerns — we’re concerned about noises and other on-going nuisances. [
work from a home office during the day, our children study at night. We enjoy sitting on our
back porch and spending time outdoors listening to the peace and quiet. When hunters are in
the area, we hear them, it’s loud and clear. We expect this noise to be ongoing when class is in
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session. At a community meeting held last December, it was stated that training for military
and law enforcement will be held during the week and for hunters and local enthusiasts, the site
would be open on the weekends. This implies training can take place seven days a week. This
will include helicopter and explosives training. Research indicates that excess noise raises
stress levels of humans. Noise is a stressor and an important unrecognized pollutant of our
environment. Our quality of life generally is eroded by annoyance by noise as substantial
segments of the population are vulnerable to its adverse health effects. More specifically, sleep
is disrupted, productivity is reduced and the education and development of children is affected
by noisy environments. The Blackriver Design Report states that this appears to be a generally
good site for the firing range activities with some concern for primarily the area along Hwy 210
and Doe Hill Road, north of the site, especially if there are homes in that area. However, much
depends on the interpretation of the noise ordinance. Potential with the commercial limits must
be met at the boundaries or residential limits must be met by Hwy 210 and firing will be at a
rate of more than once per second for extended periods. TigerSwan officials told residents in a
community meeting that they would notify residents if night training would occur so that they
would not be startled. Notification doesn’t make the noise go away. We need to be able to
continue our current lifestyles and sleep when we want to, not when TigerSwan chooses. The
Sheriff’s department is responsible for enforcing the noise ordinance. We’re not sure that they
are resourced to do this effectively. We are entitled to the quiet and tranquil enjoyment of our
properties and it should not be taken away needlessly. The National Rifle Association Range
Manual specifically states no set distance eliminates noise entirely. We unequivocally believe
that the noise generated by the proposed range will be both a private and public nuisance. The
Environmental Protection Agency and OSHA Guidelines for noise levels do not take into
account the disturbance of sleep and the ability to concentrate. We have a concern with lead
contamination. A number of studies since the 1970’s have shown the risk associated with the
firing ranges. In fact, a petition was filed August 3% of this year by a biodiversity group with
the EPA to ban the use of lead bullets and shots. In a study prepared by the environmental
working group from data from the EPA, the nation’s firing ranges represent a major potential
source of lead in water and wild life and a potential liability to nearby property owners who may
find themselves living next to a hazardous waste site or who might be victims of lead drifting
onto their property. Lead contained from a single bullet can contaminate the amount of water
consumed daily by hundreds of thousands of people. That is, the lead contamination would
exceed EPA guidelines.  However, despite their significant lead pollution, outdoor firing ranges
are exempt from reporting requirements of EPA’s rules. Firing ranges are not regulated by the
government and are not required to clean up the lead until the site is abandoned. It is well
documented that lead can remain in soil and contaminate ground water. This site is in close
proximity to wetlands with the sandy soil and high water table in our area and stormwater
runoff, we are concerned that lead could find its way into our ground water. According to Dr.
Desmond 1. Bannon, the Director of Toxicology for the United States Army, in an article
published in November of last year, small arms ranges represent a large burden of metal
contaminated sites for Department of Defense management and research continues to focus on
control and remediation of existing sites. In the same article Dr. Bannon states “risk assessment
and/or remediation of small arms ranges should therefore assume a high bioavailability of lead.”
In the soil samples that he analyzed, bioavailability of lead was determined to be 100 %. As
defined by the EPA, bioavailability is the measure of how much a contaminant is absorbed
when people are exposed to that contaminant through inhalation, skin contact or food intake.
Dr. Bannon also states in his article that both bovine calves have been poisoned due to grazing
at the target area of small arms ranges. Lead is absorbed by vegetation. It follows then that
wild life such as deer, rabbit, water fowl and bear would also be poisoned. The county’s
conditional approval states that the developer is encouraged to meet or exceed the EPA’s best
practices for lead at outdoor shooting ranges, which implies that there is no requirement to
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comply with the best management practices. We believe this lead contamination will reach my
property and will cause a decrease in its value. There is expected to be wildlife and farming
impacts. There are bears, deer and turkeys among other wildlife in this area. Wildlife and
farming operations could be impacted by noise and lead pollution. We would expect a traffic
increase. Speed limits are not closely monitored along Hwy 210 and it could be difficult to get
out of driveways during the start and end of regular work hours. This facility will likely result
in increased traffic and the accidents that go along with that. Decreased property values due to
the noise, safety and lead pollution concerns; it is likely that property values will plummet.
Who would want to live next to this site? Certainly not families and with the increased traffic
going into the site, it is likely that the crime rate could increase. Local realtors would require
sellers to disclose their proximity to this site. There’s likely a potential for TigerSwan’s
expansion. TigerSwan officials stated to residents that they have a ten year lease agreement
with some options. They also indicated that they would be leasing about fifty acres of land.
This was in December. That plan has grown to nearly 1000 acres of land associated with this
business. There’s potential for other unwanted businesses and activity in our community. With
the interpretation of Land Use Code by County Planning and Inspections, if they believe this
facility is a school and benefits the residents of the agriculturally zoned area, what else might
we see approved in the future? The effect of future land use must also be considered when
making a determination about the current land use. The area is zoned agricultural and County
Land Use Plans dictate preserving the agricultural land use, so we must assume the future land
use would be agricultural. Would you plant crops with top soil contaminated with lead? Would
you build your home, a school or a child’s playground atop land contaminated with lead? In
my research of shooting ranges, numerous documents prove them to be very hazardous to health
and the environment and a noise nuisance. I have yet to find a single document that proves
firing ranges to be safe and that there should be little concern to citizens as stated by the County
Planning Director and TigerSwan representatives. No document appears to exist that refutes
scientifically any of the lead contaminations studies. Even the Director of Toxicology of the
U.S. Army acknowledges small arms gun ranges are known to be contaminated with lead. No
documents have been presented to date that shows that lead will be 100 percent contained and
that noise will not be a nuisance to current land owners and occupants. Has an environmental
impact statement been prepared by consulting bioengineer and presented for review and
critique? Furthermore the Clean Water Act makes it unlawful for any person to discharge
pollutant from any point source into water of the United States without obtaining a permit called
a National Pollution Discharge Elimination Systems Permit. Several federal court cases have
ruled that lead shot from fire arms is a pollutant and that discharge points are point sources.
Waters of the United States include wetlands, rivers, streams, creeks, estuaries, and similar
features. To the best of my knowledge no permit has been granted to TigerSwan under the
Clean Water Act. Therefore, without such permit, the stated land use must not be approved. In
sum my family and I will suffer severe adverse impacts resulting in the decrease in the value of
my property and the diminished quality of life should this unlawful use be allowed. May I ask
that the Board admit my affidavit and exhibits in the green folder as evidence?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Are there any prohibition on introducing that?

MR. HUMPHREY: No problem.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: We don’t have any problem with admitting that and we’ll do so.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Some of the accumulated information you gave us of course we can’t
entertain because we just don’t have that latitude, it has to be substantiated by information that
is documented and something that we would have available to us. The property values would
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have to be substantiated by someone who knows what the property values are and whether or
not they would be damaged by this particular operation. The other thing is the conditions you
expressed, I'm assuming would be entertained by all of the people that live in that general part
of Cumberland County, is that correct?

MRS. FAIRCLOTH: Are you asking are the concerns similar?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Yes.

MRS. FAIRCLOTH: I have heard similar concerns from the individuals who are here with us
this evening.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: The other thing is that, do you understand people generally....a concept is
that people have the use of their property and how they choose to use it as long as it’s not
contrary to law and that’s what we’re establishing here. I want to thank you for your testimony
and [ want to remind you that you might be questioned by somebody from TigerSwan. Thank
you very much.

MRS. FAIRCLOTH: Thank you.

Chair Quigley swore in Raeford B. Lockamy, II.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Would you please state your name and address for the record?

MR. LOCKAMY: Raeford B. Lockamy, II. My address is 5509 Labrador Dr., Hope Mills, NC.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you and which property is yours, sir?

MR. LOCKAMY: Asks his brother to come to the podium to help him point out his property on
the Power point presentation.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Do you reside on that property?

MR. LOCKAMY: No sir, I reside at 5509 Labrador Dr.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay, thank you.

MR. LOCKAMY: I have lived on the farm previously.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you and what’s your testimony?

MR. LOCKAMY: As I said, my name is Raeford B. Lockamy, II, I live in Hope Mills, NC.
My family and I have owned property that is directly adjacent to the tract of land proposed to be
used by TigerSwan Training Collaboration Center that is at issue in this case, for many, many
years. My property is indicated specifically on the map which is attached to the affidavit of
Samuel Fort. My family and I enjoy the quiet atmosphere of our farm and frequently gather for
cook outs, celebrate birthdays, relieve stress after a hectic day of work and just getting away in
general. My sister has lived on our family property that is directly adjacent to the TigerSwan
site since 1983. She has a stressful job and looks forward to coming home to the peaceful
tranquility of our property. The solitary quiet atmosphere is necessary and crucial to the full
enjoyment of our property, but this will be destroyed if the TigerSwan project is allowed to
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proceed. My family and I have some significant objections to the proposed TigerSwan facility.
We brought this appeal because under no reasonable interpretation the County Zoning
Ordinance or any other law can this facility be reasonably classified as a school, public, private,
elementary or secondary. The TigerSwan facility is simply not a permitted use in the Al
District. It is completely inconsistent with the uses and purposes of that district and the
surrounding area. If this grave error and classification is not corrected; the damage suffered by
me and my family, including the decrease in the value of our property, will be substantial and
irreparable. There’s no doubt in my mind that our property values will be greatly diminished by
the presence of the operation of TigerSwan that is currently planned: that it poses a significant
threat and injuries and specific direct loss to us. Specifically those damages which are distinct
from the community at large are as follows: Safety — the TigerSwan facility is a military law
enforcement and security personnel training facility. It will contain shooting ranges and provide
instruction in training among other things firearms and other weaponry, technical
marksmanship, convoy live fire, urban warfare. TigerSwans’ advertising states “for those who

have hunted armed men, training will never be the same.” The literature also states it trains
students of all skill levels from highly skilled special skills operations operators to students
possessing minimum or no skills with fire arms: This means in addition to soldiers and law
enforcement officer, people who have never shot a gun in their life will be receiving training at
the facility and doing so for the first time. The site acres is described as 978.4 acres, therefore
the training operations can expand an incredibly large area in addition to actual shooting ranges.
There’s nothing in the site plan or otherwise that limits on the property where gunfire can occur
thus training to hunt armed men can cover 978.4 acres which brings it dangerously close and in

fact potentially directly adjacent to our property. The site plan reminds but does not require that
all levels of small fire arms, 9mm, 45 caliber, 5.56 mm, 7.62 mm will be used or provided on
site. Additional ammunitions can be added by a single request to the Sheriff’s Department.
This includes revolvers, pistols, submachine rifles, assault rifles, sniper rifles and hand
grenades. Using these weapons in the vicinity of the homes and farms is clearly a safety risk
and subjects me and my family to danger. I do not understand why this military facility is not
being set up on Ft. Bragg where they have large amounts of land already used for this purpose
and where it can be regulated and overseen by the military. In sum, the TigerSwan facility’s
main purpose is to train for firearm use and firearms used when discharged could very well
reach my property. The safety risk is real, imminent and will cause not only danger but a
decrease in the value of my property. The ongoing noise from TigerSwan’s facility will be a
nuisance and disruption for me and my family and will disturb our peaceful enjoyment of our
property ‘which will also result in the decrease of value. The Cumberland County Noise
Ordinance itself expressly states that “excessive and unnecessary noise depresses property
value”. If this facility is allowed, that is exactly what will occur in this case. TigerSwan has
informed that the proposed training will include the use of nighttime helicopter activity and
explosives. It has also acknowledged that even though efforts will be made to reduce noise the
sounds could still be heard and could be worse at times such as at night when the cloud
coverage is low, with the firing of expected millions of rounds per year, weapon firing noise
will also be significant and will not be remedied by the County Noise Ordinance or a 60 decibel
night time limitation. There is simply no way the noise from the activities will not cause
significant disturbance to me and my family. TigerSwan currently has a training facility in
Linden and there have been noise complaints from the neighbors who say it is miserable. If the
military training facility is put on the adjoining property, I would not want to live on or visit my
own property. I know no one would choose to be able to buy property next to a firing range or
military training facility. I know I would not and have no doubt our property values would be
greatly diminished or even destroyed by the TigerSwan facility. The environmental concerns I
have for my property are the soil, water, wetland and wildlife will be adversely affected because
of lead contamination that we believe will be caused by shooting ranges and other gun fire. I
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know of no laws that protect my property from these risks so damage is certain to occur to my
property. It is widely documented that shooting ranges cause lead contamination, the water
table in the area is very high and there are significant wet land areas. Lead contamination from
the TigerSwan facility could travel to my property and contaminate the water and soil. It is a
very deadly toxin. Ammunition is made from lead and after firearms are discharged at shooting
ranges and otherwise, it results in lead pollution which has also been shown by numerous
studies. At TigerSwans’s proposed facility, there will be seven to fifteen million rounds fired
annually. There is no assurance that this will be cleaned up. Left on the ground, the lead will
enter the soil and this will migrate into adjoining properties including mine. We use our
property to farm and hunt. The risk of land contamination will prevent these activities from
continuing. TigerSwan promised to provide a local phone number for the community so that we
could contact the appropriate party with our concerns. They have not done so and are simply
moving ahead with no apparent concern to the impact on me and the other neighbors. Also,
TigerSwan indicated that firing would be done during normal business hours, Mon-Fri, and they
would not train on the weekends. They have now changed this and training will occur at night
and on the weekend. This is not appropriate times for firearms and military training to occur in
such close proximity to agriculture and residential properties. In sum, my family and I would
suffer adverse impact resulting in decrease in value of property and diminished quality of life
should this unlawful use be allowed.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Do you have any expert testimony that your property value would be
diminished?

MR. LOCKAMY: No sir, I do not.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: I remind you that you remain under oath.

MR. LOCKAMY: Yes sir.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Ms. Currin, are you representing the Fort’s.

MRS. CURRIN: Yes sir, I am and I would like to make a brief statement regarding standing in
the state of North Carolina. The leading case in standing to appeal state Board of Adjustment
decisions or to the Board of Adjustment is a case “Mangum vs. Raleigh Board of Adjustment™.
I know that case very well because I represented one of the parties in that case. It went to the
Supreme Court and a decision was rendered in December 2008 and in that case the Supreme
Court specifically said that “expert appraisal or testimony as to value is not required to show
standing of any property owner” particularly if you are an adjacent owner, there is a
presumption of damage. In Mangum, it was held by our Supreme Court that concerns of
adverse effects were sufficient to show the aggrieved party status sufficient for standing under
our law. In Mangum, one of those petitioners, two were adjacent, one was a mile away and they
were all held to have standing to appeal. Their concerns specifically were: first, an increase in
traffic; second, a fear of increase in stormwater runoff; third, safety concerns; and fourth,
parking problems. They had no expert whatsoever and the Supreme court said this is enough.
When you are next door and you have concerns such as this you have standing sufficient to
come forward to bring your case not only to the Board of Adjustment but to the Superior Court
after that. I don’t know if you're aware of that case, I actually don’t have it with me, but I can
provide it to the Board which is very clear......
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CHAIR QUIGLEY: We’re not that kind of a Board.

MRS. CURRIN: ..... that concerns much less significant than my client will speak to. There are
three or four cases that have been decided since then; one of them is the Bailey Case where the
court said a concern of the neighbor that they would lose their view of ducks in the morning and
being able to look at them is enough to establish standing. As you listen to my client testify, I
would respectfully ask that you perhaps consider what the Supreme Court has said with respect
to standing in these types of proceedings.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you.

MRS. CURRIN: Now I would like for Mr. Fort to testify.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Will Samuel Fort come forward.

Chair Quigley swore in Mr. Fort.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Would you please state your name and give your address for the record.

MR. FORT: My name is Samuel D. Fort, I live at 6505 Emu Drive, Hope Mills, NC.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Your property is located? The Fort property?

MR. FORT: It’s being pointed out now, right above the two mile......

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay. thank you very much and yes Sir, what would you introduce?

MR. FORT: As I mentioned, I'm Samuel B. Fort and I live in Hope Mills, NC, but my family
owns property that is directly adjacent and may therefore be subject to more damage than the
others, but its directly adjacent to the tract of land proposed to be used as the TigerSwan
Collaborative Training Center and that is the issue in this case for which the County has issued
site approval. [ have a map which I've created that shows the site plan area, its similar to that
area. Do we need to have it up? We can just show it right now and refer to it later.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Is that available to us?

MR. FORT: We have it in various prints.
MS. CURIN: It’s in Exhibit II in your note books and also attached to Mr. Fort’s affidavit.

MR. FORT: Okay, that’s the map that I used the GIS mapping to create the base map already
and then added some notes that I'll be talking to. It’s incorporated here in the reference. My
family has owned and lived and worked on this 200 acres of land for over 150 years. It’s
located in the agricultural zoning district and is a rural area intended for farming and single
family homes. Even though the farm was subdivided approximately 20 years ago by family
members of eight siblings, ownership of the farm continues to remain in the family. While I do
not live on the property, my family and I do visit often and I use the property for various
purposes. For example, I have a garden there and we also use the property for recreational
purposes and I expect that my wife and I and other family members will live on the farm
someday in the future. My family and I have significant objections to the proposed TigerSwan
facility. We brought this appeal because under no reasonable interpretation of the County
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Zoning Ordinance can this facility be reasonably classified as a school, public, private,
elementary or secondary. The TigerSwan facility is simply a permitted use in the O&I(P)
district and completely inconsistent with the uses and purposes of that district and the
surrounding area. If this grave error of classification is not corrected the damages suffered by
me and my family including the decrease in the value of our property will be substantial and
irreparable. There is no doubt in my mind that our values will be greatly diminished by the
presence of the operation of TigerSwan that their currently planning and that it poses a
significant threat to injuries specific and indirect loss to us. Specifically those damages which
are distinct from community at large are as follows: Safety: the TigerSwan facility is self
described as a military law enforcement and security personnel training facility. It will contain
shooting ranges and provide instruction and training and among other things firearms and other
weaponry, tactical marksmanship, convoy live fire and urban warfare. TigerSwan’s advertising
states “For those who have hunted armed men, training will never be the same.” Their literature
also states that it trains students of all skill levels from highly skilled special operation operators
to students possessing minimum or no skills with fire arms. This means in addition to the
soldiers and law enforcement officers, people who have never shot a gun in their live will be
receiving training at the facility and doing so for the first time. The acreage is described as
978.4 acres, therefore training operations can span an incredibly large area. In addition to the
actual shooting range, there is nothing in the site plan or otherwise that limit on the property
where gun fire can occur. Thus, this training to unarmed men can cover 978.4 acres, acres that
brings it dangerously close, in fact, potential dangerously adjacent to my property. The site
plans reminds that all levels of small fire arms such as 9mm, 45 caliber, 5.56 mm, 7.62 mm, will
be used and provided on the site.  Additional ammunitions can be added by single request to the
Sheriff’s Dept. Our research reveals that small firearms is a term used by the armed forces to
include any weapon that a soldier can carry. This includes revolvers, pistols, submachine rifles,
assault rifles, sniper rifles and hand grenades and also includes the 50 caliber weapon. Using
these weapons in the vicinity of homes and farms is clearly a safety risk and subjects me and my
family to danger. In addition, according the the Department of Army Range Safety Pamphlet,
385-63, that was submitted with the TigerSwan site plan, a 7.62 firearm which is expressly
allowed under the approved site plan, has a surface danger zone firing distance of 4100 meters;
that’s over 2 % miles. Thus if a target or berm is missed, the shots could, without question,
reach my property and beyond.  This puts-us at risk of gunfire at our homes and farm. There are
absolutely no enforcement mechanisms that the County has to prevent such an occurrence. In
fact, the County is regulating the facility as a private elementary or secondary school, which of
course do not allow firearms at all or regulate them so that this charge does not reach
neighboring properties. We will not be able to safely use our property without risk of gun fire.
In sum, the TigerSwan facility’s main purpose is to train for firearm use and the firearms used
and discharged could and very well may reach my property. The safety risk is real and its
immediate and it will cause not only danger but a decrease in the value of my property. In area
noise, the ongoing noise from the TigerSwan facility will be a nuisance and disruption for me
and my family and it will disturb our peaceful enjoyment of our property which will also result
in a decrease in the value of my property. The Cumberland County Noise Ordinance itself
expressly states “excessive and unnecessary noise depresses property values.” If this facility is
allowed, that is exactly what will happen in this case. The Cumberland County Sheriff’s Office
records includes several shooting noise complaints from near shooting range in the Linden area.
This site has been used by TigerSwan to conduct training. There are no records made available
that indicate that the noise wherever measured will determine if they were in violation of the
noise ordinance or if the complaints have ever been fully resolved. One complaint letter from
an individual on June 7™ of this year to a county official began with and I quote “I hope you
have not closed the shooting range file here in Linden, we had the worst shooting this past
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weekend for three days. The noise was terrible.” The letter ended with “I sure hope you will
help in this matter as this is a miserable life and we are outside working a lot.” TigerSwan has
acknowledged that the proposed training will include the use of nighttime helicopters, activities
and explosives. It is also even though efforts will be made to reduce noise, the sound could still
be heard and could be worse at times such as at night or when there is low cloud cover. In
regards to noise according to the acoustical report that is included in the site plan, there is say...
there is no actual berm benefit for the carbine range and in the case of the 50 yard range the
berms only reduce the noise by 1 — 2 decibels. With the firing of the expected millions of
rounds per year, weapon firing noise will also be significant and will not be remedied by the
County Noise Ordinance. The County Ordinance has a very low restriction on noise that may
be produced during the daytime hours and not everyone is away from their property in the
daytime. At the community meeting held on December 1, 2009, TigerSwan’s representative
said and I quote “Everybody will be gone during the day at work anyway.” That’s simply not
the case; some people may have to work at night and try to sleep in the daytime. Others may be
retired and otherwise not work. I personally often visit my farm during the daytime hours and
will be bothered by noise from helicopters, explosives and gunfire. Others work from their
homes or are confined to their homes such as the retired, the sick and maybe the elderly. How
restful will their existence be? The TigerSwan folks also said in their December meeting that
the range may also be used on the weekend for local interested participants and of course that’s
when almost all owners and residents will be present on their property. Obviously helicopter
over flights and explosives day or night will be significantly disruptive, particularly, to property
owners like me who are directly adjoined to the TigerSwan property. In addition, the noise
ordinance only measures noise from the property line which would not apply to aircraft coming
and going such as helicopters; thus there could be substantial noise from these helicopters and
the county would have no enforcement mechanism. In fact, aircraft are specifically exempt
from the noise ordinance which may make sense for an occasional over flight, but not for a
military training facility with helicopter training in an agricultural and residential district. The
noise will be detrimental and neither the noise nor the site plan conditions will operate to
prevent the danger and the property devaluation to me and my family. In areas of
environmental concerns, I also have environmental concerns for our property. The soil, water,
wetlands and wildlife will be adversely affected because of lead contamination that we believe
will be caused by the shooting range and other gunfire. The TigerSwan facility also imposes a
substantial risk to the wildlife, soil and groundwater on our property. Like safety, there are no
county regulations, which govern the activity that pose these risk, which leave me virtually
unprotected from damages that will most like occur on my property. This is a long term issue
which will result in damage to property and property value well into the future. It is widely
documented that shooting ranges cause lead contamination. The water table in this area is very
high and there is significant wetland area. There is no question that the lead contamination from
TigerSwan’s facility could travel to my property and contaminate the water and the soil. The
county has already areas of unsafe drinking water due to contamination. Preventing possible
future contaminations of this valuable resource should be a high priority for all of us. Lead is a
very deadly toxin, ammunition is made from lead and after firearms are discharged at shooting
ranges or otherwise, it results in lead pollution. Numerous studies have documented that
outdoor shooting ranges are major sources of pollution in the environment. Studies have shown
that outdoor shooting ranges put more lead into the environment than most industrial uses. At
TigerSwan’s proposed facility there will seven to fifteen million rounds fired annually. They
say they will clean up this, but as stated; the county has no mechanism to regulate it. Left on
the ground, the lead will enter the groundwater and this will migrate into adjoining properties
including mine. We use our property to farm and hunt and the risk of lead contamination will
prevent those activities from continuing. If the TigerSwan facility is allowed to go forward, we
will not allow hunters to hunt on our land as we have in the past. Our concerns here are about

County Board of Adjustment Minutes: 08/19/10 Page 16 of 42



hunters personal safety while on our property and we could not in good conscious allow anyone
to eat meat that roam over the adjoining firing range. Property values — if this military training
facility is put on the adjoining property, I will not want to live on my own property. I cannot
imagine anyone would want to build a house, making a large investment and live nextto a firing
range/military facility. I'm an ordinary citizen, I believe, with the same common sense and
values as most of the people who live or want to live in Cumberland County. I would not want
to purchase such a property. There is no doubt in my mind that our property values will be
greatly diminished or destroyed by the presence of the operation that TigerSwan is planning.
As a citizen of Cumberland County, it’s really disappointing to learn that such an operation can
qualify under the school definition of the County Zoning Ordinance. I wonder who of us really
believe that any operation such as the one TigerSwan is planning is what the authors had in
mind when they wrote that schools are a permitted use in each and every residential zone in the
two agricultural zones in the County. Only the commercial and industrial zones which do not
list schools as a permitted use wouldn’t be subjected to an invasion of this type of operation. In
the August 3, 2010, Fayetteville Observer article, A Good Neighbor Gun Range, TigerSwan’s
public relations manager, Mr. Butner wrote that “Barra Farm site was specifically chosen
because it was, and I quote “isolated enough for their strict safety requirements.” There are
more than seventy residential home sites located in a three mile section of Hwy 210 Corridor
near the site and its indicated on the map by the small star. All the residents and many more in
the neighboring communities are within 2 2 miles of the shooting range. I know that all these
folks do not feel that they are isolated enough from this proposed operation. In summary, my
concerns with this operation are that it will destroy the fundamentals of the preserved open
space and rural peaceful character of the area. It will threaten my family’s safety and adversely
affect the value of my property. I am not unpatriotic and I believe the military must have the
best training available. However, we do have a military base of over 160,000 acres and we
shouldn’t need to transform this rural part of eastern Cumberland County into a military area to
benefit the private sector. It will continuously present a noise nuisance and presence of activity
that will be a disturbance to the daily lives of all of those who live nearb<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>